Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

ADVANCE PUBLICATION OF
REPORTS

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below.

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members
and operational key decision makers.

Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s
Publication of Decisions List.

1. SURPLUS PROPERTY DISPOSAL - CHARLES BABBAGE HOUSE
(Pages 1 - 24)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1

PART 1 Report

Agenda Item 1

London Borough of Enfield

Title:

Surplus property disposal - Charles Babbage House

Report to:

Fay Hammond — Executive Director Resources

Date of Report
briefing:

20 November 2023

Cabinet Member

Clir Leaver — Cabinet member for Finance, Procurement
and Property

Exec Director:

Fay Hammond -

Report Author: | James Hall james.hall@enfield.gov.uk
Ward(s) Southbury

affected:

Key Decision KD 3432

Number

Implementation | 12 December 2023

date, if not

called in:

Classification:

Part | Public and Part 2 Private

Reason for
exemption

The Part Il report contains Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)

Purpose of Report

1. To approve the disposal of Charles Babbage House, which has been
declared surplus to operational requirements, to preferred Bidder ‘B’ and on
terms set out in the attached Part Il report.

KD3432 Part 1 (formerly under KD 5189)- Res/SPS/JH/20/11/23




Page 2

Recommendations

Agree the sale of Charles Babbage House to Bidder ‘B’ as preferred bidder
in accordance with the Heads of Terms appended to the confidential Part Il
report.

Authorise the Director of Property to finalise non-material changes to the
Heads of Terms, including such variations that may be necessary to cover
existing third-party rights affecting the property.

To note that all agreements to be entered into as contemplated by this
report are to be approved in advance of commencement by Legal Services
on behalf of the Director of Law and Governance.

Background and Options

2.

Charles Babbage House had been occupied by the Council’s Childrens’
Services department until late 2022, when the functions moved into the newly
refurbished Thomas Hardy House in Enfield town centre. As the property had
been declared surplus to operational requirements, a decision was made to
market the property and this followed an earlier Cabinet report in late 2020
where Cabinet had provided authority to proceed with this disposal (KD 5189).

Discussions had also taken place with colleagues in the HRA and Housing
Gateway Ltd (HGL) about the possibility of retaining the property for
conversion to temporary housing but that was considered to not be a financially
viable option.

The Council appointed Bowyer Bryce as their appointed agent in October 2022
to market the property, with the option of either a letting or freehold disposal.
A 4-month marketing campaign was undertaken (which included extensive
publicity among a wide cross-section of commercial businesses and
community groups). This culminated in two rounds of bidding; with best and
final bids from 3 bidders on 16 March 2023 for the purchase of the freehold.

The approved offer was subsequently reduced just before exchange and as a
consequence there was a new competitive process focusing the previous
existing high bids and late expression of interest. Further information on these
the bids are outlined below and in Part 2.

Preferred Option and Reasons for Preferred Option

6.

The reasons for recommending Bidder ‘B’ are due to the level of the offer, the
deliverability of the bid and greater confidence around exchanging contracts in
so far as them having already undertaken their legal due diligence and offering
a £50,000 non-refundable deposit as a gesture of good faith. This is deemed
as having a higher prospect of proceeding to completion, and more quickly,
and therefore treated as more commercially valuable. In contrast, the offer
from Bidder ‘D’ whilst tied financially was not considered to be as good a
guarantee to deliver a timely exchange and completion on the basis that their

KD3432 Part 1 (formerly under KD 5189)- Res/SPS/JH/20/11/23




Page 3

offer still had some conditionality and they had yet to undertake their full legal
due diligence and was subject to bank finance.

7. Further details of the assessment of the bids is contained in Part 2.
Relevance to Council Plans and Strategies

8. The sale of the property will deliver a much-needed significant capital receipt
to the Council and thereby helping generally to fund Council services which
contribute to a strong and healthy community.

Financial Implications
Capital Budget implications.

9. If the net capital receipt is used to repay debt/ substitute borrowing, that
would avoid interest costs (detail covered in Part 2).

Revenue Budget implications

10. There will be a loss of £20k per annum rental income currently received
(majority from roof masts) (see para 39).

11. The Council’'s 2023/24 Budget assumes £5m new capital receipts in 2023/24
to fund specific transformation programmes as well as contributing to a
reserve to fund the replacement of the current HR and finance systems. If this
is not achieved, there will be an additional pressure on the Council’s revenue
budget via interest costs and provisions to repay debt.

12. The bid satisfies requirements to generate best consideration, as stipulated
by the Local Government Act 1972, due to competitive bidding process which
generated the highest bid which was accepted.

Tax Implications (VAT & SDLT)

13. Based on the information provided, there are no significant adverse VAT
implications to LBE arising from this sale since any VAT incurred will be
accounted for against the Council’s de-minimis.

Legal Implications

14. The Council has power under Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972
to do anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to,
the discharge of any of its functions. The Council also has a general power of
competence under Section 1(1) of the Localism Act 2011 to do anything that
individuals may generally do, provided it is not prohibited by legislation and
subject to public law principles. The recommendations set out in this report are
consistent with the Council’s powers and duties.

15. Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives a power of sale or leasing

to Councils. Pursuant to subsection 1 of that provision, the Council ‘may
dispose of land held by then in any manner they wish’ and subsection 2

KD3432 Part 1 (formerly under KD 5189)- Res/SPS/JH/20/11/23



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Page 4

qualifies this by imposing a statutory duty to achieve ‘best consideration’ (save
for tenancies of less than seven years), unless it has the benefit of an express
or general consent of the Secretary of State.

Therefore, local authorities have broad powers to dispose of their land,
including as regards process. There are however strict requirements on best
consideration, alongside public law requirements, including procedural
fairness which need to be observed. Public law principles will apply to the
decisions made by the Council, including the Council’s duty to take account of
its fiduciary duty and to act prudently. The Council is also under a general duty
to act reasonably and show that its decisions are made after having given due
and proper consideration to all relevant factors.

In entering into property transactions, the Council must also comply with the
provisions of its Constitution, including but not limited to its Property Procedure
Rules, which set out mandatory procedures regarding (amongst other things)
the acquisition, management and disposal of property assets.

In this case, it is noted that the Council originally went out to the open market
using Bowyer Bryce as their appointed agent and a competitive process was
undertaken, therefore complying with the statutory requirements and the
Council’'s Constitution. Furthermore, that the bid from Bidder ‘B’ has been
assessed by Bowyer Bruce as representing best consideration with a higher
degree of confidence in this unconditional bid. When considering the duty
under section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972, what is reasonable in
any particular case depends entirely on the facts of the transaction. Case law
has determined that the Council should limit itself to taking account of those
elements of a transaction which are of commercial or monetary value when
assessing whether it is obtaining the best consideration reasonably obtainable.
Furthermore, that the deliverability or credibility of a bid are commercial factors
which are relevant to an assessment. This has been emphasised in a plethora
of case law, including the recent judgement of R (Cilldara) v West
Northamptonshire Council [2023]. Therefore, in light of this, the Council has
properly directed itself and its decision to proceed with Bidder ‘B’ is justifiable.

The Council is required to act in accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty
under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and have due regard to this when carrying
out its functions. It is noted that corporate advice has been taken on this issue.

Any legal agreements arising from the matters described in this report must be
approved by Legal Services on behalf of the Director of Law and Governance.

(Legal implications provided by EP on 17/11/2023).

Equalities Implications

21.

Corporate advice has been sought regarding equalities and an agreement has
been reached that an equalities impact assessment is neither relevant nor
proportionate for the approval of this report.

HR and Workforce Implications

22.

There are no workforce implications.

KD3432 Part 1 (formerly under KD 5189)- Res/SPS/JH/20/11/23



Page 5

Environmental and Climate Change Implications

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

The preferred bidder’s proposal is to retain and reuse the building for non-
domestic purposes, this use type is not expected to dramatically increase the
energy consumption of the site.

As the site has a high embodied carbon content due to the construction type,
from a carbon emissions standpoint retaining the building in its current form
may be preferable to proposals that involve major development or demolition
of the site, unless these works were done with careful consideration for
minimising carbon.

The site has an EPC of E which, demonstrating the site would benefit from
energy and decarbonisation upgrades, it is unknown if the bidder proposes to
make energy or decarbonisation improvements to the site. Alternative options,
such as PD change of use, may have had a negative energy cost impact for
occupants without significant upgrades.

It should be noted that if the bidder retains the site for private use there may
be limited planning or regulatory controls for improving the energy efficiency of
the building, currently regulation primarily covers lettings.

For reference, the council invested in LED lighting at the site in 2016 through
the Salix recycling loan (fully repaid in 2022) and PC Power Management
improvement works in 2020 (repaid by 2022)

Public Health Implications (if any)

28.

There are no public health implications.

Property Implications

29.

30.

Property implications are within the main body of this report and accompanying
Part Il (confidential) paper.

The freehold interest is being sold with Vacant Possession but subject to two
utility tenancies detailed as follows:

- T-Mobile (UK) Ltd & Hutchinson 3G UK Ltd - (Roof Masts
Telecommunications) Lease dated 11 May 2009 for a term of 10 years from
11 May 2009 (now holding over).

- i) TXU Europe Group Plc (In administration) (ii) Alan Robert Bloom and
others (iii) National Transcommunications Ltd Lease dated 6 February 2004
for a period of 93 years expiring 22 December 2097.

Summary & Conclusions

31.

32.

The Charles Babbage House property became vacant in late 2022 and is
surplus to the Council’s operational needs.

Following the marketing process, and consideration of these revised bids, this
report seeks approval to proceed with Bidder ‘B’ based on analysis of all offers
received and a higher degree of confidence of the preferred bidder’s ability to
complete the transaction in a timely way. The other bidder in contention was

KD3432 Part 1 (formerly under KD 5189)- Res/SPS/JH/20/11/23



Page 6

not considered to be as good a guarantee to deliver a timely exchange and
completion on the basis that their offer still had some conditionality and they
had yet to undertake their full legal due diligence (unlike Bidder B, who had
already done so, and were ready to exchange contracts, and are willing to offer
to pay a £50,000 non-refundable deposit).

Report Author: James Hall
Principal Development manager
James.hall@enfield.gov.uk
0208 132 1720

Appendices

Sales Particulars
Part Il Report - Confidential

Background Papers

PL2223 012 - KD3432 (Part 1 and Part 2)

KD3432 Part 1 (formerly under KD 5189)- Res/SPS/JH/20/11/23


mailto:James.hall@enfield.gov.uk

Page 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



BOWYER _—
Chartered Surveyors

BRYCE Commercial Property Consultants

FOR SALE OR TO LET

DETACHED PROMINENT OFFICE BUILDING
Approx. 16,600 sq ft (1,542.12 sg m)

Charles Babbage House
1 Orton Grove Carterhatch Lane
Enfield EN1 4TU

O  Detached office building

O Potential for further development of the site with PDR for residential
O Open plan and private offices

O 32 Car parking spaces

O Passenger lifts in central core

O Kitchen and cloakroom facilities

See important notice overleaf

020 8367 5511 bowyerbryce.co.uk

96 Silver Street, Enfield EN| 3TW ({: RICS

Also at: London W & Stevenage The mark of
property professionalism worldwide



Page 14

Description

The total site extends to approximately 0.84 acres (0.34 ha). The
site is triangular shaped with access points off Melling Drive and
Orton Grove and comprising a purpose built part two, part five storey
building built in circa the 1960’s/1970’s. The building is of concrete
frame construction and has a flat roof and elevations which
comprise concrete infill panels and metal frame, single glazed
windows. To the front of the building there are 32 surface car
parking spaces at a ratio of one space per 518 sq ft.

Location

This standout building is located on Orton Grove, Enfield and
benefits from a prominent corner plot at the junction of Carterhatch
Lane and Melling Drive. Enfield Town centre is circa 0.9 miles to
the south west which benefits from a range of shops and amenities
including the Palace Exchange shopping centre. The locality also
enjoys access to a number of excellent local schools as well as open
recreational spaces such as Forty Hall Country Park. The site lies
equidistant between Enfield Town and Turkey Street Railway
stations circa 1.0 miles to the south west and north east
respectively. Both stations provide frequent access into central
London via London Liverpool Street with an approximate journey of
35 minutes. The site also benefits from excellent road links as it is
situated 0.2 miles to the north west of the A10 directly linking Enfield
with central London, circa 9.6 miles to the south and junction 25 of
the M25 motorway, circa 1.5 miles to the north.

AN R 3
o JE

7

Medical Care 4{
( e
/Forty Hill -

2

il
3 %
& 2
Sports/Leisure
/
/

e A S Y/ T “9
Energy Performance Certificate (EPC)
Rating: E113

The full EPC and recommendation report can be
viewed and downloaded from our website
www.bowyerbryce.co.uk

Important Notice
Bowyer Bryce (Surveyors) Ltd for themselves, any joint agent and for the seller(s) or landlord(s) of this property whose agents they are, give notice that: () These particulars are set out as
a general outline only for the guidance of intended buyers and tenants and do not constitute, nor constitute part of, any offer or contract. (i) All descriptions, dimensions, references to condition and
necessary permissions for use and occupation, and other details are given without responsibility and any intending buyers or tenants should not rely on them as statements or representations of
fact but must satisfy themselves by inspection or otherwise as to the correctness of each of them. (iii) No director or person in the employment of the agents has any authority to make or give
any representation or warranty whatsoever in relation to the property. (iv) No tests have been carried out to any of the services which may serve the property such as heating, power supplies,
lighting, fire or security alarms etc, and therefore no warranty is given that they are in satisfactory working condition or comply with the appropriate regulations. (v) All rents and prices quoted
are exclusive of VAT (if chargeable).

Bowyer Bryce (Surveyors) Ltd Registered office 96 Silver Street Enfield EN| 3TW Registered in England No 1456714

Floor Areas

Floor areas are net internal and approximate only

(Sg m) Sq ft
Ground floor offices 377.88 4,068
Ground floor store 9.88 106
1st floor offices 343.51 3,698
2 floor offices 268 2,885
31 floor offices 268.24 2,887
4 floor offices 274.61 2,956
Total Net Internal Area 1,542.12 16,600

Terms
To be let as a whole for a term to be agreed. Rent upon
application.

Or

Freehold — offers invited on an unconditional basis only.
Business Rates

Rateable Value 2022/2023 £194,000

Rates payable £99,328.

Interested parties should confirm the rateable value and
rates payable with the Local Charging Authority.

Legal Costs

Each party will be responsible for their own legal costs
incurred.

Viewing
Strictly by appointment through Bowyer Bryce

Property Ref

lan Harding

M: 07956 374326
| D: 020 8370 2536
E: ian.harding@bowyerbryce.co.uk

BOWYER

BRYCE

Chartered Surveyors
Commercial Property Consultants

bowyerbryce.co.uk


http://www.bowyerbryce.co.uk/

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Surplus property disposal - Charles Babbage House
	RES_SPS_JH_301023 KD3432 (5189)_Sale of Charles Babbage House_Pt 2- 22.11.23
	Part 1 Appendix - Particulars Charles Babbage Hse
	Part 2 Appendix 1 Draft HoTs V5 311023
	Part 2 Appendix 2 Bid Summary
	Part 2 Appendix 3 (CBH) Bowyer Bryce Marketing Report and Bid Analysis 301023


